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To Management 
University Auxiliary and Research Services Corporation 
San Marcos, CA 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements of University Auxiliary and Research Services 
Corporation (the Organization) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, we identified deficiencies in 
internal control over financial reporting (control deficiencies). 

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, In the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct. 
misstatements on a timely basis. A deficiency In design exists when (a) a control necessary to meet the 
control objective Is missing, or (b) an existing control is not properly designed so that, even If the control 
operates as designed, the control objective would not be met. A deficiency In operation exists when a 
properly designed control does not operate as designed or when the person performing the control does 
not possess the necessary authority or competence to perform the control effectively. 

A material weakness Is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, In Internal control, such that there is 
a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be 
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. 

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies. In Internal control that Is less 
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. 

Certain control deficiencies that have been previously communicated to you, In writing, by us or by others 
within your organiZation are not repeated herein. 

Following are descriptions of other identified deficiencies In Internal control that we determined did not 
constitute significant deficiencies or material weaknesses: 

Accrued Employee Paid Time Off 

During the testing of accrued vacation, it was noted that the following error was made in the determination 
of accrued amounts as of June 30. 2013: 

The Organization Incorrectly determined that Sponsored Projects employees did not require vacation, 
paid time off and personal holiday accrual as the liability amounts would be Immaterial to the financial 
statements. 

The net adjustment related to the error Illustrated above In the current year was an increase to vacation 
accrual of approximately $148,000 as well as an increase in the corresponding payroll expense. Prior 
year net assets and accrued vacation accounts were also misstated by approximately $123,000, since 
the Organization had excluded certain employees in prior years as well 
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Deferred Revenue 

During test work of deferred revenue, It was noted that the following error was made In revenue 
recognition as of June 30, 2013: 

The Organization recognized revenue for the entire $50,000 lump sum due from Pepsi In the prior year 
even though the revenue was to be recognized over the 10-year life of the contract as specified by the 
contract. The adjustment booked In the current year was a decrease in revenue of $42,500 and an 
increase in deferred revenue of $42,500. In addition to this, there was a passed adjustment to restate 
prior year net assets In the amount of $47,500 for the amount of revenue that should have been deferred 
in the prior year. 

Management Advice 

Although no errors or deficiencies were detected during the audit with respect to related-party 
transactions at the Organization, the audit team found it difficult to reconcile related-party payable and 
receivable balances as well as related-party expenses and revenues with respect to the University and 
other auxiliary organizations. Obtaining the proper amounts for disclosure purposes required various 
inquiries and changes to the financial statements, and the responses sometimes differed between the 
separate entitles. Oftentimes, balances were mixed with third-party transactions and difficult to Identify, 
disaggregate and analyze. McGladrey recommends that the Organization (as well as other auxiliary 
organizations) develop additional controls surrounding its processing of related-party transactions. Below 
is a list of some recommendations you could Implement: 

• 	 Create separate payable, receivable, revenue and expense accounts for each related party with 
whom the Organization transacts. 

• 	 Ensure the separate accounts are maintained based on the nature of the services performed by 
or for the related party, so that the amounts can easily be compared to existing contracts and 
easily summarized for reporting and budgeting purposes. Separation of the accounts by nature of 
transaction will make it easier to Identify and review payments made or received that do not meet 
the criteria of existing agreements, and to determine when new agreements may be required. 

• 	 Develop a monthly or quarterly reconciliation process to compare related-party balances against 
the records of the University and other auxiliary organizations. Ensure this process Is completed 
Independently on both sides before comparisons are made; that way it's easier to Identify 
possible errors. 

This communication Is Intended solely for the Information and use of management and others within the 
organization and Is not Intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified 
parties. 

/If~~~~ 
San Diego, CA 
September 24, 2013 
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McGladrey LLP 
1455 Frazee Road, Suite 600 
San Diego, CA 92108 

This representation letter Is provided In connection with your audits of the financial statements of 
University Auxmary and Research Services Corporation (the Organization) which comprise the 
statements of flnanclal position as of June 30, 2013 and 2012 and the related statements ofactivities, and 
cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on whether the financial statements are presented fairly, in all material respects in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (U.S. GAAP). 

We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, as of September 24, 2013, the following 
representations made to you during your audit: 

Financial Statements 

1. 	 We have fulfilled our responslbllltles, as set out In the terms of the audit arrangement letter dated 
August 1, 2013, for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements referred to above 
in accordance with U.S. GAAP. 

2. 	 We ack~edge our responsibility for the design, Implementation, and maintenance of intemal 
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error. 

3. 	 We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal 
control to prevent and detect fraud. 

4. 	 Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, Including those measured at fair 
value, are reasonable. In that regard, adequate provisions have been made postretlrement benefits 
other than pensions attributable to employee services rendered through June 30, 2013. 

5 	 Related-party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed In 
accordance with the requirements of U.S. GAAP. 

6. 	 All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which U.S GAAP requires 
adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed. 

7. 	 The effects of all known actual or possible litigation and claims have been accounted for and 
disclosed in accordance with U.S. GAAP. 

8 	 The following have been property recorded and/or disclosed in the financial statements: 
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a. Related-party relationships, transactions and related amounts receivable or payable, including 
revenues, expenses, transfers and leasing agreements, all of which have been recorded in 
accordance with the economic substance of the transactions. 

b. Investments In dabt and equity seGUrttlea, lnoludlng their cJaaalflcatlon. 

c. All leases and material amounts of rental obligations under long-term leases. 

d. An significant estimates and material concentrations known to management that are required to 
be disclosed In accordance with the Risks and Uncertainties Topic of the FASS Acoountlng 
Standards Codification. Significant estimates are estimates at the balance sheet date that could 
change materially within the next year. Concentrations refer to volumes of business, revenues. 
available sources of supply, or mart<ets for which event& could occur that would significantly 
disrupt normal finances within the next year. 

e. Assets and liabilities measured at fair value in accordance with the Fair Value Measurements and 
Disclosures Topic of the FASS Accounting Standards Codification. 

f. Tax status. We have evaluated the tax positions under the two·step approach for recognition and 
measurement of uncertain tax positions required by the Income Taxes Topic of the FASB 
Accounting Standards Codlflcatlon. 

g. Allocations of functional expenses based on reasonable ba&i&. 

h. Board designated unrestricted net assets. 

I. Concentrations of credit risk. 

9. 	 We have no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or classification of 88$ets. 
In that regard: 

a. 	 The Organization has no significant amounts of Idle property and equipment. 

b. 	 The Organization haa no plans or intentions to dlsconUnue the operations cl any dlvlaion or to 
discontinue any significant product lines. 

10. We are responsible for making the accounting estlmatee lnckided in the ftnanclal statements. Those 
estimates reffect our judgment baaed on our knowledge and experience about past and current 
events and our assumptions about conditions we expect to exist and courses of action we expect to 
take. In that regard, adequate provisions have been made postretirement benefits other than 
pensions attributable to employee seNice& rendered through June 30, 2013. 

11. There are no: 

a. 	 Violations or possible violations of laws or regulations whose effects should be considered for 
disclosure in the financial statements or aa a basis for recording a loss contingency. In that 
regard, we specifically represent that we have not been designated as, or alleged to be, a 
"potentially responsible party" by the Environmental Protection Agency In connection with any 
environmental contamination 

b. 	 Other material llabllltles or gain or loss contingencies that are required to be accrued or disclosed 
by the Contingencies Topic of the FASB Accounting Standards Codification. 

c. 	 Guarantees, whether written or oral, under which the Organlzalion is contingently Hable. 

d. 	 Arrangements with financial Institutions Involving compensating balances or other arrangements 
involving restrictions on cash balances. 
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e. 	 Lines of credit or similar arrangements. 

f. 	 Agreements to repurchase assets previously sold. 

g. 	 Security agreements In effect under the Uniform Commercial Code. 

h. 	 Liens or encumbrances on assets and all other pledges of assets. 

I. 	 Contractual obligations for plant construction and/or purchase of real property, equipment, other 
assets, and Intangibles. 

J. 	 Liabllltles that are subordinated to any other actual or possible llabllltles of the Organization. 

k. 	 Derivative financial Instruments. 

I. 	 All recordable contributions, by appropriate net asset class. 

m. 	 Reclassifications between net asset classes. 

n. 	 Composition of assets In amounts needed to comply with all donor restrictions. 

o. 	 Deferred revenue from exchange transactions. 

p. 	 Refundable advances. 

q. 	 Obsolete, damaged, or excess Inventories. 

r. 	 Deferred lax assets. 

s. 	 Uninsured lo88e& or loss retentions {deductibles) attributable to events occu!Tfng through June 
30, 2013, or for expected retroactive Insurance premium adjustments applicable to periods 
through June 30, 2013. 

t. 	 Material losses to be sustained in the fulfillment of or from the Inability to fulfill any sales 

commitments, Including promises to give. 


u. 	 Environmental ctean-up obligations. 

v. 	 Amounts held for others under agency and/or split Interest agreements. 

w. 	 Investments or other assets that have permanently declined in value. 

x. 	 We have reviewed long..iived assets and certain Identifiable intangibles to be held and used for 
Impairment whenever events or changes tn clroumstances have Indicated that the carrying 
mnount of the assets might not be recoverable and have appropriately recorded the adjustment 

y. 	 Uncollectlble receivables. 

z. 	 Pension obligations or deferred compensation agreements. 

12. The Organization has satisfactory title to an owned assets. 

13. We have complied with all aspects of contractual agreements, grants, and donor restrictions that 
would have a material effect on the financial statements In the event of noncompliance. 

In considering the dlsctoeures that should be made about risks and uncertainties, we have concluded that 
the following are required: 

14. 	The Organization reimburses Callfomla Stale University San Marooa (the University) for salaries and 
other program-related coats for personnel working on contracts, other programs and other campus 
programs. The total paid to the University for these selVices was $4,732,943 and $4,604,583 ror the 
years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012. respectively. Amounts due to the University were $290,212 
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and $456,811 as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. During the year, the Organization received 
cash of $2,302,541 from students In connection with the ALCI program that was Immediately remitted 
to the UniVerslty. 

16. 	The University reimburses th• Organization for servlce11 ~nd programs. The total amount received by 
the Organization was $719,197 and $984,523 for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, 
respectively. Amounts due from the University at June 30, 2013 and 2012 were $87,218 and $4,049, 
respectlvely, and were Included In due from afffflates. 

16. 	From time to time, the Organization receives funds for University related programs that are 
subsequently transferred to the Unlver&lty. Amounts held for this purpose a.a of June 30. 2013 were 
$262,287 and are Included In amounts due to afflllates. There was no balance for this purpose as of 
June 30, 2012. 

17. 	The Organization as a lessor has entered illfo an operating lease agreement to rent storage space to 
the University at 435 E. Carmel Street. The monthly rental Income la $12,140 through December 31, 
2012 and $11,591 from January 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014. The total rental Income was 
$146,880 for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012. The future minimum rental receipts for the 
year ending June 30, 2014 are $139,092. 

18. In July 2004, the Organization entered Into an agreement with San Marcos University Corporation 
(the Corporation) to provide certain personnel and olher operating services. The total amount 
charged to the Corporation for lhese services and costs was $309.645 and $273,960 for the years 
ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. As of June 30, 2013 and 2012, there was an amount 
due from the Corporation for these services In the amount of $132,618 and $273,960, respectively. 

19. 	On July 1, 2010, the Organization entered into a payroll processing agreement with Associated 
Students Inc. (ASI). Under this agreement, all ASI employees became employees of the 
Organization. During the year ended June 30, 2013, the Organization Invoiced ASI $738,627 and 
$816,268 for payroll and benefits, administration fees and aupphea. Ae of June 30, 2013 and 2013 
the Organization had receivables due from ASI In the amounts of $31,239, and $43, 112, respectively, 
which are Included fn due from affiliates. 

20. 	On July 1, 2012, the Organization transferred the activities of the American Language & Culture 
Institute (ALCI) program to the University. A&SOClated with this transfer, the Organization paid 
expenses In the amount of $869,979 on lhe Unlveralty's behalf and is recorded as a transfer of net 
assets. The ALCI activities continue to operate as a component of the extended learning program at 
the University. 

21. 	On June 28, 2013, the Organization loaned the Unlverelty $250,000 at three percent Interest payable 
over seven years through June 30, 2020, in order to help wllh the budget reductions faced by the 
University. Interest only payments of $7,500 are due the first two years and then prfnclpal and 
Interest payments of $54,589 per year are due over the remaining five years. 

22. On July 1, 2011, San Marcos University Corporation (the Corporation) trenaferred the assets and 
functions of lhe campus child care center, Center for Children and Families, from the Corporation to 
the Organization. The child care center assets oonsisted of a building, land Improvements and 
related furniture and equipment with a net book value of $6,286,611 at July 1, 2011 . As part of the 
transfer, the Organization assumed the Child Care Center Development Agreement (the Agreement) 
with Children's Creative Leaming Center (CCLC), a Callfomla corporation, which tennlnated on 
August 30, 2012. CCLC operated and managed the center for the chllclren rent-free. Management 
estimated that the value of the agreement was $486,408 for the year ended June 30, 2013. This 
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amount is Included In the statement of activities for the year ended June 30, 2013 aa child care center 
in~klnd rental Income and campus programs expense. 

23. 	Along with the assets for the child care center, the ground lease was also transferred to the 
Organization. Management estimated that the value of th• luae agreement wae $258,077 for the 
year ended June 30, 2013. This amount is reflected In the statement of aclivities for the year ended 
June 30, 2013 as property management fees revenue and land teasing costs, which are Included In 
the campus program expense. 

24. The Organization has an operating agreement with CSUSMF to provide certain administrative 
services, Including cash management processes, gift account administration, and accounting and 
financial reporting assistance. The Organization receives an administrative fee when CSUSMF funds 
are expended. The due to afflllate liability represents the status of that relatlonshlp as of June 30, 
2013 and 2012 In terms of balances held by the Organization that are being managed on behalf of 
CSUSMF. The balances due to CSUSMF as of June 30, 2013 and 2012 were $7,527,922 and 
$8,373,994, respectively, which are Included In due to affiliates. 

25. 	On July 7, 2011 , the Organization entered into an agreement with an unrelated third party to operate 
the campus bookstore. The term of the agreement Is through June 30, 2021, unless terminated by 
either party with advance notice, as defined In the agreement. As part of the agreement, the 
unrelated third party purchased the remaining bookstore Inventory, made capital improvements of 
approximately $158,000, and made a payment of $200,000 for a one-time contribution to the 
Organization. If the Organization terminates lhe agreement prior to the termination date or If the 
unrelated third party terminates the agreement for cause, the Organization is required to purchase 
any existing Inventory at the time of termination at fair value according to the agreement, reimburse 
the unrelated third party for the book value of its capital Improvements, and refund the unamortized 
portion of the one-time contribution. As oonsideraUon for the agreement, the Organization will receive 
an annual 12.6 percent commlaslon on grosa revenue up to $4 million plus 13.5 percent from gross 
revenue In excess of $4 million. Commission revenue for the year ended June 30, 2013 and 2012. 
respectively, was $385,162 and $347,615. The one-time contribution was recorded as other Income 
for the·yearended June 30, 2012. 

26. On June 5, 2012, the Organization entered Into an agreement with an unrelated third party which 
granted the unrelated third party exclusive rights to campus beverage sales and distribution. The tenn 
of the agreement Is a ten year period commencing on January 1, 2012 and expiring on December 31. 
2021, unless terminated by either party with advance notice, as defined In the agreement. As part of 
the agreement, the unrelated third party will have exclusive rights for beverage sales and distribution, 
Including the right to provide all beverages at athletic events, club actMtfes, special eventa, 
concessions, and vending locations. Aa consideration for the agreement, the unrelated third party 
paid the Organization an Initial support fund in the amount of $50,000 earned over the term of the 
agreement and payable upon signing the agreement. Additional consideration Includes an Annual 
Sponsorship Fee of $20,000 payable annually at the end of each calendar year and 35% commission 
paid quarterly on actual cash collected by vending machines plus proceeds from credit card 
transactions. Commission revenue was $36,109 and $5,468 for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 
2012, respectively. The sponsorship fee of $20,000 for the year ended June 30, 2013 ls also Included 
in commission revenue. 

27. On April 17, 2013, the Organization entered into an agreement with an unrelated third party to 
operate the campus food services including retail sales, catering, and concessions. The term of the 
agreement Is twenty years commencing on August 6, 2012 and continuing through August 5, 2032 
unless terminated by either pa11y with advance notice, as defined In the agreement. As part of the 
agreement. the Organization wlU continue lo own the premises and equipment used to operate the 
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food services and the unrelated third party shall purchase and own the inventories of food, beverage, 
and supplies used In operations. In the event of a termination by the Organization, all amounts due to 
the unrelated third party shall be payable Immediately as defined In the agreement. The Organization 
does not expect early termination. As consideration for the agreement, the unrelated third party will 
pay the Organization a commission of 6% on retall and catering sales commencing on July 1, 2019. 

28. We agree with the findings of apeclallsts in evaluating the postreUrement benefit obligation and have 
adequately considered the quallflcatlone of the specialist& In determining the amounts and 
dlsclosures used In the financial statements and underlying accounting records. We did not give or 
cause any Instructions to be given to specialists with respect to the values or amounts derived In an 
attempt to bias their work, and we are not otherwise aware of any matters that have had an Impact on 
the independence or objectivity of the speclallsts. 

29. 	We have Informed you of all uncorrected misstatements. 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2013 

We believe that the effects of the uncorrected misstatements aggregated by you and summarized below 
are Immaterial, both Individually and In the aggregate to the financial statements taken as a whole. For 
purposes of this representation, we consider Hems to be material, regardle86 of their size, if they Involve 
the misstatement or omission of accounting Information that, In light of surrounding circumstances, makes 
it probable that the judgment of a reasonable person relylng on the information would be changed or 
influenced by the omission or misstatement. 

Effect • Debit (Credit) 
oascrlpllon ASsots Llabllitles Net Assets Revenue Expense 
Canyowrlmpact rromPrevlous Years 

Nonreverslng: 
• None 

ReVllSlng: 
• To reduce CY depredallon expense llatshoukt 

have been taken In fie prfor year 
$ . $ . $ 15,891 $ • $ (15,89!) 

, To record prb year efeclorsponsored projects 
vacalonlPTO accrual 123,033 (123,033) 

To record prior year ellcti>r Ile detsrral of 
• revenue relltMI ~ COf1ID9slol11 paymanti received 47,500 (47,000) 

bulnol earned 

Cunent Year Mlslatements 
Totatertect $ . $ • $ 186,424 $ (47,600) $ (1§81924) 

Current year elsdon lhe lfatament ofacivllet ---------- (186,424) 
Total nel assets effect $ 

/nfonnatlon Provided 

30. We have provided you with: 

a. 	 Access to all Information, of which we are aware that Is relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements such as records, documentation, and other matters; 
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b. 	 Additional Information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit; 

c. 	 Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined It necessary to obtain 
audit evidence. 

d. 	 Minutes of the meetings of the governing board and committees, or summaries of actions of 
recent meetings for which minutes have not yet been prepared. 

31 . All transactions have been recorded In the accounting records and are reflected In the financial 

statements. 


32. 	We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of risk that the financial statements may be 

materlally misstated as a result of fraud. 


33. We have no knowledge of allegations of fraud or suspected fraud, affecting the entity'e financial 

statements Involving: 


a. 	 Management. 

b. 	 Employees Who have significant roles In the Internal control. 

c. 	 Others where the fraud could have a material effect on the ffnanclal statements. 

34. We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the Organization's 

flnanclal statements received In communications from employees, former employees, regulators, or 

others. · 


35. We have no knoWledge of noncompliance or suspected noncompliance with laws and regulations 
whose effects should be considered when preparing financial statements. 

36. 	We are not aware of any pending or threatened lltlgatlon and claims whose effects were considered 
when preparing the financial statements and we have not consulted legal counsel conoemlng 
litigatlon or claims. · 

37. We have dlaclosed to you the identity of the entity's related parties and all the related-party 
relatlon8hlpa and transactions of which we are aware. 

38. We are aware of no significant deficlenclea or material weaknessea, In the design or operation of 
Internal controls that could adversely affect the Organization's ablllty to record, process, aummartze, 
and report financial data. 

39. There have been no communications from regulatory agencies concerning noncompliance with, or 
deficienGle& in, financial reporting practices. 

Supplementary Information 

40. 	With respect to supplementary information presented in relation to the financial statements as a 
whole: 

a. 	 We acknowledge our responsibility for the presentation of such Information. 

b. 	 We believe such lnfonnatlon, Including Its form and content, Is falr1y presented fn accordenoe with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

c. 	 The methods of measurement or presentation have not changed from those used In the prior 
period. 
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41. 	We have received a determination from the Internal Revenue Service that we are exempt from 
federal Income taxes as a Section 601(c)(3) not-for-profit corporation, and we have complied with the 
IRS regulations regarding this exemption. 

42. We are responsible for determining that algnlfloant events or transactions that have occurred slnoe 
the balance sheet date and through September 24, 2013, have been recognized or dlSck>sed in the 
financlal statements. No events or tranaactlons have occurred subsequent to the balance sheet date 
and through September 24, 2013 that would require recognition or diadosure In the flnanclal 
statements. We further represent that as of September 24, 2013, the financial statements were 
complete In a form and format that complied with aooountlng principle& generally accepted In the 
United States of America, and al approvals nece19ary for issuance of the flnanclal statements had 
been obtained. 

43. During the course of your audit, you may have accumulated records containing data that should be 
reflected In our books and records. All such data have been so reflected. Accordingly, copies of such 
records In your possession are no longer needed by us. 

In connection wfth your audit, conducted In accordance with GAS, we confirm: 

44. We are responaible for: 
a. 	 Compliance with the laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts and grant agreement& 

applicable to the Organization. 

b. 	 Establlehlng and maintaining effective Internal control over ftnanclal reporting. 

45. 	We have Identified and di8Clo&ed to you: 
a. 	 All lawa, regulations and provision& of contracts and grant agreements that have a dil9Ct and 

material effect on the determinations of financial statement amounts or other financial data 
significant to audit objectives. 

b. 	 Violations (and possible violations) of laws, regulations and provisions of contracts and grant 
agreements whoee efl'ects should be considered for dlscloaure in the auditor's report on 
noncomplfance. 

48. We know of no fraud, Illegal acts, violations of provisions of contracts or grant agreements, or abuse 
that hu been reported. 

47. We have a process to track the status ofaudit findlnga and recommendations. 

48. We have Identified for you previous flnanclal audits, attestation engagements, performance audits, or 
other studies related to the objectives of the audit being undertaken and the corrective action taken to 
address significant ffnclfnga and recommendations. 

49. We have provided you with our views on your f9PC)t1ed findings, conclusions and reoommendatlone, 
as well as our planned corrective actions for the report. 

60. We have reviewed, approved, and tal<e full re&ponslbillty for, the financial statements and related 
notes and acknowledge the auditor's role In the preparation of this infOnnatlon. 

In connection with your audit of federal awards conducted in accordance with OMS Circular A-133, Audits 
ofState, Local Govemments, and Non·profil Organizations, we confirm: 
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51. 	We are responsible for complyh'IQ. and we have complied, with the requirements of OMS 

Circular A-133. 


52. We have prepared the schedule of expenditures of federal awards In accordance with OMB 
CircularAft133 and have lnclUded expenditure& made during the period being audited for all 
awards provided by federal agencies in the form of grants, federal cost-reimbursement contracts, 
loans, loan guarantees, property (Including donated surplus property), cooperative agreements, 
Interest subsidies, Insurance, food commodities, direct appropriations and other assistance. 

63. 	We are responsible for establishing and maintaining, and we have establlshed and maintained, 
effective internal control over compliance for federal programs that provides reasonable 
aBeurance that the Organization Is managing federal awards In compliance with laws, regulations 
and the provisions of contracts or grant agreements that could have a materiel effect on our 
federal programs. 

64. 	We are responsible for complying with the requirements of laws, regulations and the provisions of 
contracts and grant agreements related to each of the Organizatron's federal programs and have 
complied, In all material respects, with those requirements. 

55. We have Identified and disclosed to you the requirement& of laws, regulations and the provisions 
of contracts and granf agreements that are considered to have a direct and material effect on 
eaoh major program. 

56. There are no Interpretations of compliance requirements that have varying Interpretations. 

57. We have made available all contracts and grant agreements (Including amendments, if any) and 
any other correspondence relevant to federal progf8fn& and related actlvHiea that have taken 
place with federal agencies or pass-through entitles. 

58. There are no amounts questioned or any known noncompliance with the requirements of federal 
awards, Including those resulting from other audlta or program revieW&. 

59. We have charged costs to federal awards In accordance with applicable cost principles. 

60. We have made available all documentation related lo the compHance requirements, Including 
Information related to federal program financial report& and claims for advances and 
reimbursements. 

61. We are responsible for taking corrective action on audit findings of the compliance audit. 

62. We have disclosed Whether any changes in internal control over compliance or other factors that 
might significantly affect Internal control, Including any corrective aotion taken by management 
with regard to significant deficiencies In Internal control over compliance {Including material 
weaknesses In Internal control over compliance), have occurred subsequent to the date as of 
which compliance Is audited. 

63. 	Federal program financial reports and claims for advances and reimbursements are supported by 
the books and records from which the basic financial statements have been prepared. 
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64. The copies of federal program financial reports provided to you are true copies of the reports 
submitted. or electromcally transmitted. to the federal agency or pass-through entity, as 
applicable. 

66. We ere responsible for. and heve aecurtltely prepared, the summary schedule of prtor audit 
findings to Include all findings required to be Included by OMB Circular A-133. 

68. We have proVided you with all Information on the status of the follow-up on prior audit findings by 
federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities. lncludlng all management decisions. 

61. There are no subrecipients. only subcontracted work as Identified in grant agreements. 

68. We have accurately completed appropriate sections of the data collect on form. 
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Independent Auditor's Report 

To the Board of Directors 
University Auxiliary and Research 

Services Corporation 
San Marcos, CA 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of University Auxiliary and Research Services 
Corporation, which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, and the 
related statements of activities and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the 
financial statements. 

Management's Responslblllty for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted In the United States of America (U.S. GAAP): 
this includes the design, Implementation and maintenance of intemal control relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responslblllty 

Our responsibility Is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We 
conducted our au<frts In accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures In 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, Including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers intemal control relevant to the entity's 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also Includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting poffcies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, In all material respects, the 
financial position of University Auxiliary and Research Services Corporation as of June 30, 2013 and 
2012, and the changes in Its net assets and Its cash flows for the years then ended In conformity with 
U.S.GAAP. 
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Report on Schedules to be Included In the CaHfomla State University System's Flnanclal Report 
(Supplementary lnfonnatlon) 

Our audits were conduded for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. 
The supplementary Information is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part 
of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from 
and relates direcdy to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements. The information has been subjeded to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements or to the flnanclal statements themselves, and other additions! procedures In accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted In the United States of America. In our opinion, the information Is 
fairly stated In all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 

/It~~~~ 
San Diego, CA 
September 24, 2013 
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University Auxiliary and Research Services Corporation 

Statements of Flnanclal Position 
June 30, 2013 and 2012 

Assets 
Current Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Sponsored programs receivable 
Other receivables 
Due from affiliates (Note 6) 
Prepaids 
Certificates of deposit 
Investments (Note 2) 
Inventory (Note 4) 

Total current assets 

$ 

2013 

460,438 
986,879 
62,821 

260,973 
44,668 

8,261,374 
3,237,070 

13,283,213 

$ 

2012 

641,076 
672.906 

31,125 
321,121 
32,670 

11,691,486 
2,212,128 

29326 
15,831,640 

Other Assets 
Property and equipment, net (Notes 3 and 4) 
Note receivable from University (Note 6) 
Other assets 

Total other assets 
Total assets $ 

6,780,669 
260,000 

61 1081 
610911640 

19.374.853 $ 

6,244,339 

61 1081 
61305.420 

22.137.260 

Llabllltles and Net Assets 
Current Liabilities 

Accounts payable 
Due to affiliates (Note 6) 
Deferred revenue 
Accrued payroll and benefits 
Other current llablffties 

Total current llabllitles 

$ 322,724 
8,080,401 

418,104 
682,012 

171466 
9,620,697 

$ 456,943 
8,830,805 

902,316 
594,791 
25.162 

10,810,017 

Accrued postretirement benefit costs (Note 5) 
Total liabllltles 

114831436 
11,004,133 

1.205.268 
12,015.285 

Commitments and Contingencies (Note 4) 

Net Assets 
Unrestricted: 

Board-designated: 
Operating reserves 
Program reserves 
Campus programs 
Equipment 
Scholarship 

Total netassets 
$ 

1,111,946 
467,841 

1,020,375 
6,780,669 

813701720 
19.374.863 $ 

1,465,858 
628,708 

1,776,604 
6,244,339 

6466 
10.121.975 
22.137.260 

See Notes to Financial Statements. 
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University Auxiliary and Research Services Corporation 

Statements of Activities 
Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 

2013 2012 
Revenue, Gains and Other Support: 

Federal grants and contracts 
Other sponsored programs 
Campus programs (Note 6) 
Commercial operations (Note 4) 
Commissions (Note 4) 
Interest Income 
Dividend income 
Net realized and unrealized loss on Investments (Note 2) 
Child care center in-kind rental income (Note 4) 
Ground lease income (Note 4) 
Rental Income (Note 6) 
Other Income (Note 4) 

Total revenue, gains and other support 

$ 6,273,797 
1,263,263 
1,461,960 

126,788 
469,392 

7,087 
40,273 

(41,209) 
486,408 
268,077 
146,680 

10,460,616 

$ 6,325,338 
1,263,991 
3,300,561 
1,639,947 

379,256 
37,268 

76 
(6,260) 

478,022 
253,627 
145,680 
200,000 

14,017,506 

Expenses (Note 6): 
Program services: 

Sponsored programs (Note 4) 
Campus programs (Notes 4 and 6) 
Commercial operations (Note 4) 
Student scholarships 

Total program services 

6,619,136 
1,199,422 

211,089 
941662 

8,024,308 

6,448,461 
3,306,530 
1,604,854 

48,627 
11,408,472 

General administration (Notes 4 and 6) 
Total expenses 
Change In net assets before transfer ofa88eta 

313271484 
11.3611792 

(891,276) 

310881231 
14.496.709 

(479,203) 

Transfer of Assets to University (Note 6) 
Transfer of Assets from UCorp (Notes 3 and 4) 

(869,979) 
6,285,611 

Net Assets, begimlng 
Net Assets, ending s 

10.1211976 
8.370.720 s 

413151567 
10.121.975 

See Notes to Financial Statements. 
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University Auxlllary and Research Services Corporation 

Statements of Cash Flows 
Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 

2013 2012 
Cash Flows From Operating Activities 

Change In net assets $ (891,276) $ (479,203) 
Transfer of assets to University (Note 6) (869,979) 
Adjustments to reconcile change In net assets to net cash provided by 

(used in) operating activities: 
Depreciation 494,149 541,631 
Net realized and unrealized loss on Investments 41,209 6,260 
Change in accumulated postretlrement benefit obligation 278,168 177,281 
(Increase) decrease in: 

Sponsored programs receivable (312,973) (31,644) 
Other receivables (31,696) 278 
Due from affiliates 70,148 (232,669) 
Prepaids (11,988) (32,670) 
Deposits 844,226 
Inventory 29,326 167,028 

Increase (decrease) in: 
Accounts payable (134,219) (261,461) 
Due to affiliates (760,404) 1,943,847 
Deferred revenue (484,212) 3,712 
Accrued payroll and benefits 87,221 100,912 
Other current liabilities (71706! {173.2071 

Net cash provided by (used In) operating activities (2,484,232) 2,574,321 

Cash Flows From Investing Activities 
Purchases of property and equipment (30,369) 
Purchases of investments (1,086,161) (2,218,388) 
Maturities of certificates of deposit 9,606,000 10,513,000 
Purchases of certificates of deposit (6,884,888) (14,840,402) 
Distributions on note receivable to the University (2601oooi 

Net cash provided by (used In) Investing activities 212931692 {615451790l 
Change In cash and cash equivalents (190,640) (3,971,469) 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, beginning of year 6411078 416121547 
Cash and Cash Equivalents, end of year s 460.438 $ 641.078 

Supplemental Disclosures of Noncash Activities 
Transfer of assets from UCorp (Note 4): 

Property and equipment $ $ 6.285.611 

See Notes to Financial Statements. 
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University Auxlllary and Research Services Corporation 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 1. Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Nature of operations: University Auxiliary and Research Services Corporation {formerly named 
California State University San Marcos Foundation {CSUSMF)) (the Organization) is a nonprofit California 
corporation and an auxiliary organization of California State University San Marcos (the University), 
organized and operated In accordance with the California Code of Regulations and the Education Code of 
the State of California. The Organization was organized in December 1989 to assist the University in 
various activities, including developing and administering research and educational grants and contracts; 
managing the bookstore and food service operations; and administering various education-related 
functions, special programs and other activities. 

The Organization's financial statements are included as a component unit of the University's annual 
general-purpose financial statements. This Is required by accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States applicable to governmental entities. 

Affiliated organizations: The Organization is related to other auxiliaries of the University, including San 
Marcos University Corporation (the Corporation or UCorp), Associated Students, Inc. {ASI) and CSUSMF. 
These auxlllaries, although Independent, and the University periodically provide various services to one 
another. 

A summary of significant accounting policies Is as follows: 

Basis of accounting and reporting: The Organization reports Information regarding Its financial position 
and activities according to three classes of net assets: unrestricted, temporarily restricted and 
permanently restricted. 

• 	 Urvestrlcted net assets represent expendable funds available for operations, which are not 
otherwise limited by donor restrictions. 

• 	 Temporarily restricted net assets consist of contributed funds subject to donor-imposed 
restrictions contingent upon specific performance of a Mure event or a specific passage of time 
before the Organization may spend the funds and accumulated endowment earnings in 
compliance with the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA). 

• 	 Permanently restricted net assets are subject to Irrevocable donor restrictions requiring that the 
assets be maintained in perpetuity, usually for the purpose of generating Investment income to 
fund current operations. 

Contributions received are recorded as unrestricted, temporarily restricted or permanently restricted 
support, depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor restrictions. 

VVhen a restriction expires {that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is 
accomplished), temporarily restricted net assets are released to unrestricted net assets and reported in 
the statements of activities as net assets released from restrictions. Contributions received with donor
imposed restric:tlons that are satisfied within the same reporting period are reported as unrestricted 
support in that period. 

There were no temporarily or permanently restricted net assets as of June 30, 2013 or 2012. 
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University Auxlllary and Research Services Corporation 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 1. Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Pollcles (Continued) 

Cash and cash equivalents: The Organization maintains accounts at one financial institution, with funds 
insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC). The Organization's accounts at this 
institution may, at times, exceed FDIC-Insured limits. At June 30, 2013, the Organization's cash balance 
at this institution did not exceed the current FDIC-Insured limits. 

The Organization considers all highly liquid investments with original maturity dates of three months or 
less to be cash equivalents. 

Sponsored programs receivable: The sponsored programs receivable arise in the normal course of 
sponsored research. It Is the policy of management to review the outstanding receivable at year-end, as 
well as the bad debt write-offs experienced in the past, and establish an allowance for doubtful accounts 
for uncollectlble amounts. Management determined no allowance was necessary at June 30, 2013 or 
2012. 

Investments: Investments in equity securities and mutual funds with readily determinable fair values, 
based on daily share prices, are reported at fair value with gains and losses included in the statements of 
activities. 

The Investments of the Organization are exposed to Interest rate and market risk. Economic conditions 
can impact these risks and resulting fair values can be either positively or adversely affected. If the level 
of risk increases In the near term, it Is possible that the Investment balances and the amounts reported In 
the financial statements could be materially affected by market fluctuations. Although the fair value of 
Investments is subject to fluctuations on a year-to-year basis, management believes the investment policy 
is prudent for the long-term welfare of the Organization and its beneficiaries. 

Inventory: Inventory at Juie 30, 2012 consists primarily of food and is valued at the lower of cost (first-in, 
first-out method) or fair value. There was no inventory as of June 30, 2013 (see Note 4). 

Property and equipment: Property and equipment are recorded at cost, If purchased, or at the fair value 
of the contribution, if donated. Certain equipment acquired through grants and contracts is subject to 
restrictions on its use and disposition subsequent to the conclusion of the related grants and contracts. A 
physical Inventory list is maintained by the Organization of these assets as required by the grant funding 
agency. The funding source may have a reverslonary Interest in the property as well as the right to 
determine the use of any proceeds from sale of equipment purchased with their respective funds. 
Depreciation Is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the property 
and equipment, generally three to 30 years. The estimated lives of leasehold Improvements are the 
shorter of the useful life or the term of the lease. 

Long-lived assets: The Organization evaluates the canying value of long-lived assets for impairment 
whenever events or changes In circumstances Indicate the carrying value of such assets may not be 
recoverable. The estimated future cash flows are based upon, among other things, assumptions about 
expected future operating performance and may differ from actual cash flows. Long-lived assets 
evaluated for Impairment are grouped with other assets to the lowest level for which identifiable cash 
flows are largely Independent of the cash flows of other groups of assets and liabilities. If the sum of the 
projected future undiscounted cash flows (excluding interest) is less than the carrying value of the assets, 
the assets will be written down to the estimated fair value in the period which the determination is made. 
Management has determined that no impairment of long-lived assets currenUy exists. 
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University Auxiliary and Research Services Corporation 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 1. Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Use of estimates: The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent 
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and 
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. These estimates 
include assessing the lives and methods for recording depreciation of property and equipment, 
determining the fair value of investments and determining the allowance for doubtful accounts for 
receivables. 

Revenue recognition: Revenue from federal grants and contracts and other sponsored programs is 
recognized as support in the fiscal year In which allowable expenditures have been made. Revenue from 
federal grants and contracts and other sponsored programs received prior to incurring the related 
expenses have been deferred. Revenues from registration fees received In advance of classes occurring 
have been deferred. Revenue from commercial operations Is recognized upon sale of products. 

Functional allocatlon of expenses: The costs of providing the various programs and other activities 
have been summarized on a functional basis in the statements of activities. Accordingly, certain costs 
have been allocated among the programs benefited. 

Reclassifications: Certain Items In the 2012 financial statements have been reclassified to conform with 
2013 presentation. These reclassifications had no impact on net assets or the change in net assets. 

Income taxes: The Organization is a qualified nonprofit organization that Is generally exempt from 
federal and state income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the lntemal Revenue Code and 
Section 23701(d) of the Califomia Revenue and Taxation Code. This exemption Is for all Income taxes 
except for those assessed on unrelated business income (UBI), if any. In order to maintain that status, the 
Organization is precluded from making certain expenditures, principally In support of political parties. 
Management believes that no such expenditures have been made. The Organization is not a private 
foundation. 

The Organization adopted accounting guidance relating to accounting for uncertainty in income taxes, 
which Is primarily codified In Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards 
Codification (ASC) 740. The Organization files a Form 990 (Retum of Organization Exempt from Income 
Tax) annually. When these retums are filed, it is highly certain that some positions taken would be 
sustained upon examination by the taxing authorities, while others are subject to uncertainty about the 
merits of the tax position taken or the amount of the position that would ultimately be sustained. Examples 
of tax positions common to the Organization include such matters as the tax-exempt status of the entity 
and various positions relative to potential sources of UBI. UBI Is reported on Form 990-T, as appropriate. 
The benefit of tax position Is recognized in the financial statements in the period during which, based on 
all available evidence, management believes it Is more likely than not that the position will be sustained 
upon examination, includlng the resolution of appeals or litigation processes, If any. 

Tax positions are not offset or aggregated with other positions. Tax positions that meet the more-llkely
than-not recognition threshold are measured as the largest amount of tax benefit that is more than 
50 percent likely to be realized on settlement with the applicable taxing authority. The portion of the 
benefits associated with tax positions taken that exceeds the amount measured as described above is 
reflected as a liablllty for lllrecognlzed tax benefits in the accompanying statements of financial position, 
along with any associated Interest and penalties that would be payable to the taxing authorities upon 
examination. As of June 30, 2013 and 2012, the Organization has addressed uncertainty in its Income tax 
position under the guidance, and there are no unrecognized/derecognlzed tax benefits requiring an 
accrual. 
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University Auxiliary and Research Services Corporation 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 1. Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Forms 990 and 990-T filed by the Organization are subject to examination by the Internal Revenue 
Service up to three years from the extended due date of each retum. Management believes Forms 990 
and 990-T have been filed appropriately. Forms 990 and 990-T filed by the Organization are no longer 
subject to examination for the fiscal years anded June 30, 2009 and prior. 

Subsequent events: The Organization has evaluated subsequent events through September 24, 2013. 
the date the financial statements were available to be Issued, and has determined that there were no 
subsequent events to recognize In these financial statements. 

Recent accounting guidance: In October the 2012, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 
(ASU) 2012-05, Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230)-Not-for-Profit Entities: Classification of the Sale 
Proceeds ofDonated Financial Assets in the Statement of Cash Flows. This Update requires. with certain 
exceptions. a not-for-profit (NFP) to classify In the statement of cash flows cash received from donated 
financial assets as an operating activity if those donated financial assets were directed without any NFP
lmposed limitations for sale and were converted nearfy Immediately Into cash. This guidance Is effective 
prospectively for fiscal years. and Interim periods within those years, beginning after June 15, 2013. 
Retrospective application to all prior periods presented upon the date of adoption is permitted. Earfy 
adoption from the beginning of the fiscal year of adoption is permitted. For fiscal years beginning before 
October 22, 2012, early adoption is permitted only If an NFP's financial statements for those fiscal years 
and Interim periods within those years have not yet been made available for issuance. Certain transition 
disclosures are required. The adoption of this standard is not expected to have a material impact on the 
Organization's financial position, results of operations or cash flows. 

In April 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-06, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958)-Services Received 
From Personnel ofan Affiliate. These amendments are effective on a prospective basis for fiscal years 
beginning after June 15, 2014, and Interim and annual periods thereafter. A recipient NFP entity may 
apply the amendments using a modified retrospective approach under which all prior periods presented 
upon the date of adoption shouki be adjusted, but no adjustment should be made to the beginning 
balance of net assets of the eartiest period presented. Early adoption Is permitted. The adoption of this 
standard Is not expected to have a material Impact on the Organization's financial position, results of 
operations or cash flows. 

Note 2. Investments 

Investments consisted of the following at June 30: 

2013 2012 

Core fixed Income institutional mutual funds $ 1,940,831 $ 903,764 
Domestic equity securities 1,296,239 1,308,364 

$ 3.237.070 $ 2.212.128 

As required by the Fair Value Measurement Topic of the FASB ASC, which establishes a three-tiered fair 
value hierarchy, the Organization prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair value as follows: 

• 	 Level 1: Obseivable Inputs such as quoted prices In active markets. Classifications included 
equity securities and mutual funds that have share prices and net asset values provided daily. 
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University Auxlllary and Research Services Corporation 

Notes to Flnanclal Statements 

Note 2. Investments (Continued) 

• 	 Level 2: Inputs, other than the quoted prices In active markets, that are observable either directly 
or Indirectly. Classifications Included Institutional mutual funds that have net asset values 
provided dally. 

• 	 Level 3: Unobservable inputs in which there Is little or no market data, which require the reporting 
entity to develop Its own assumptions. Classifications Included hedge funds that do not have daily 
pricing but for which fair value could be determined based on the most recent report of the net 
asset value of the fund. 

Investments at fair value, as of June 30, 2013, according to the fair value hierarchy were as follows: 

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level3 
Core fixed Income Institutional 

mutual funds $ 1,940,831 $ 1,940,831 $ $ 
Domestic equity securities 1,296,239 1,296,239 

$ 3.237.070 $ 3.237.070 $ $ 

Investments at fair value, as of June 30, 2012, according to the fair value hierarchy were as follows: 

Total Level1 Level2 Level3 
Core fixed income institutional 

mutual funds $ 903,764 $ 903,764 $ $ 
Domestic equity securities 1,308,364 1,308,364 

$ 2.212.128 $ 2.212.128 s s 

The following table reflects a reconciliation of beginning and ending Investment balances for the 
Organization's total Investments for the years ended June 30: 

2013 2012 

Beginning balance $ 2,212,128 $ 
Net additions, purchases, sales and maturities 1,066,151 2,218,388 
Net realized and unrealized loss ,411209} ,s12002 

Ending balance 	 $ 3.237.070 2.212.128I 
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University Auxlliary and Research Services Corporation 

Notes to Flnanclal Statements 

Note3. Property and Equipment 

Property and equipment consisted of the following at June 30: 

2013 2012 

Land Improvements $ 1,818,992 $ 1,818,992 
Building and improvements 4,102,220 4,102,220 
Furniture and equipment 1,524,124 1,524,124 
Leasehold Improvements 1,767,960 1,737,591 

9,213,296 9,182,927 
Less accumulated depreciation (3,432,737) (2,938,588) 

$ 5,780,559 $ 6,244,339 

On July 1, 2011, UCorp transferred the assets and functions of the campus child care center, Center for 
Children and Families, to the Organization. The child care center assets consist of a building, land 
improvements, and related furniture and equipment totaling $6,285,611, net of accumulated depreciation 
(see Note 4). 

Note4. Commitments and Contingencies 

Leases: The Organization has entered into various operating lease agreements with the University for 
office facilities, with monthly rents totaling $3,666 through December 31, 2013. The lease agreement for 
435 E. Carmel Street may be terminated by either party upon a six-month written noUce and has monthly 
rent of $11,592 expiring on June 30, 2014. Total rent expense was approximately $183, 100 for each of 
the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012. 

The minimum future rental payments are as follows: 

Years Ending June 30, 	 Amount 

2014 	 $ 161,102 
$ 161.102 

Book store operating agreement: On July 7, 2011, the Organization entered Into an agreement with an 
unrelated third party to operate the campus bookstore. The term of the agreement Is through June 30, 
2021, unless terminated by either party with advance notice, as defined in the agreement. As part of the 
agreement, the unrelated third party purchased the remaining bookstore inventory, made capital 
Improvements of approximately $158,000, and made a payment of $200,000 for a one-time contribution 
to the Organization. If the Organization terminates the agreement prior to the termination date or If the 
unrelated third party terminates the agreement for cause, the Organization Is required to purchase any 
existing Inventory at the time of termination at fair value according to the agreement, reimburse the 
unrelated third party for the book value of its capital Improvements, and refund the unamortized portion of 
the one-time contri.bution. As consideration for the agreement, the Organization will receive an annual 
12.5 percent commission on gross revenue up to $4 million plus 13.5 percent from gross revenue in 
excess of $4 million. Commission revenue for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 Included 
$385, 152 and $347,515, respectively, under this agreement. The one-time contribution was recorded as 
other Income for the year ended June 30, 2012. 
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University Auxlllary and Research Services Corporation 

Notes to Flnanclal Statements 

Note 4. Commitments and Contingencies (Continued) 

Child care center lease agreement: On July 1. 2011. UCorp transferred the assets and functions of the 
campus child care center, Center for Children and Families, to the Organization. The child care assets 
consisted of a building, land Improvements, and related furniture and equipment, with a net book value of 
$6,285,611 at July 1, 2011. As part of the transfer, the organization assumed the Child Care Center 
Development Agreement (the Agreement) with Children's Creative Leaming Center (CCLC), a Callfomia 
Corporation, which terminated on August 30, 2012. CCLC operated and managed the center for the 
children rent-free. Management estimated that the value of the agreement was $486,408 and $478,022 
for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. These amounts are included in the statements 
of activities for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 as child care center In-kind rental income and 
campus programs expense. 

Along with the assets for the child care center, the ground lease was also transferred to the Organization. 
Management estimated that the value of the lease agreement was $258,077 and $253,627 for the years 
ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. These amounts are reflected in the statements of activities 
for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 as property ground lease income and land leasing costs, 
which is included In campus programs expense. 

On June 5, 2012, the Organization entered into an agreement with an unrelated third party that granted 
the unrelated third party exclusive rights to campus beverage sales and distribution. The term of the 
agreement is a 10-year period commencing on January 1, 2012 and expiring on December 31, 2021, 
unless terminated by either party with advance notice, as defined in the agreement. As part of the 
agreement, the unrelated third party will have exclusive rights for beverage sale and distribution, Including 
the right to provide all beverages at athletic events, club activities, special events, concessions and 
vending locations. As consideration for the agreement, the urvelated third party paid the Organization an 
initial support fund in the amount of $50,000 earned over the term of the agreement and payable upon 
signing the agreement. Additional consideration includes an Annual Sponsorship Fee of $20,000 payable 
annually at the end ofeach calendar year and 35 percent commission paid quarter1y on adual cash 
collected by vending machines plus proceeds from credit card transactions. Commission revenue 
included $56,109 and $5,468 for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively, under this 
agreement, which includes the $20,000 sponsorship fee for the year ended June 30, 2013. 

On April 17, 2013, the Organization entered into an agreement with an unrelated third party to operate the 
campus food services, Including retail sales, catering and concessions. The tenn of the agreement is 
20 years commencing on August 6, 2012 and continuing through August 5, 2032, unless terminated by 
either party with advance notice, as defined in the agreement. As part of the agreement, the Organization 
will continue to own the premises and equipment used to operate the food services and the unrelated 
third party shall purchase and own the inventories of food, beverage and supplies used In operations. In 
the event of a termination by the Organization, all amounts due to the unrelated third party shall be 
payable immediately as defined in the agreement. The Organization does not expect early termination. As 
consideration for the agreement, the unrelated third party will pay the Organization a commission of 5 
percent on retaH and catering sales commencing on July 1, 2019. 

Sponsored programs: The Organization receives significant financial assistance from numerous federal , 
state and local governmental agencies in the fonn of grants and operating subsidies. Disbursement of 
funds received under these programs generally requires compliance with terms and conditions specified 
in the agreements and Is subject to audit by the grantor agencies. Any disallowed claims resulting from 
such audits could become a liability to the Organization. However, In the opinion of management, any 
such dlsallowed claims would not have a material adverse Impact on the overall financial position of the 
Organization at June 30, 2013. 
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University Auxlllary and Research Services Corporation 

Notes to Flnanclal Statements 

Note4. Commitments and Contingencies (Continued) 

Workers' compensation Insurance: During the fiscal years 2013 and 2012, the Organization purchased 
workers' compensation insurance for $50,986 and $40,120, respectively, through an approved self
insurance program in which the Organization is a member (as are ASI and the FoundatiOn), and which is 
administered by the Califomla State University Risk Management Authority (CSURMA). 

Involvement in alternative insurance programs such as the CSURMA's self funded workers' 
compensation program Is an attempt to control the Increases In Insurance costs, but also carry financial 
commitments to the liabilities of the program. 

Legal proceedings: The Organization is involved in legal proceedings arising in the normal course of 
business. Management believes the final outcome of these proceedings will not have a material adverse 
effect on the Organization's results of activities or financial position. 

Note 6. Accrued Postretlrement Benefit Costs 

The Organization has a postretirement program that provides lifetime medical and dental coverage to 
retiring employees aged 65 or older with at least 1Oyears of service. Medical coverage will be provided 
through the CalPERS medical program. Dependents of eligible retirees will also receive lifetime medical 
coverage. Expenses under the program for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 were $278, 168 and 
$1n,281, respectively. 

The following tables Include the postretirement healthcare benefits that are unfunded and the amounts 
recognized In the financial statements as of and for the years ended June 30: 

2013 2012 

Benefit obligation, beginning of year $ 1,336,436 $ 768,689 
Service cost 204,208 134,708 
Interest cost 57,452 46,121 
Actuarial gains (losses) 

Benefit obligation, end of year 
,255,176}

$ 1,342,920 
386.918 

$ 1,336,436 

2013 2012 
Funded status: 

Unamortized prior service cost $ 386,460 $ 412,787 
Unrecognized net actuarial gain (526,976) (281,619) 

Accrued benefit cost 11483.436 1.205.268 
Funded status, end of year $ 1,342.920 $ 1,336,436 

2013 2012 
Net periodic benefit cost: 

Service cost $ 204,208 $ 134,708 
Interest cost 57,452 46,121 
Amortization of prior service cost 26,327 26,327 
Amortization of net (gain) ,9,819} {291875} 

$ 2781168 $ 1n1281 
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University Auxlllary and Research Services Corporation 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Note 6. Accrued Postretlrement Benefit Costs (Continued) 

No benefits were paid during the years ended June 30, 2013 or 2012. 

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine the benefit obligation included a discount rate of 
5.00 percent and 4.30 percent and a health care cost trend rate of 6.70 percent and 7.00 percent for the 
years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. 

Note 6. Transactions With Affiliates 

The Organization reimburses the University for salaries and other program-related costs for personnel 
working on contracts, other programs and campus programs. The total amount paid to the University for 
these services was $4,732,659 and $4,604,583 for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, 
respectively. Amounts due to the University at June 30, 2013 and 2012 were $290,212 and $456,811, 
respectively, and are included In due to affiliates. During the year, the Organization received cash of 
$2,302,541 from students in connection with the American Language & Cultural Institute (ALCI) program, 
which was Immediately remitted to the University. 

The University reimburses the Organization for services and programs. The total amount received by the 
Organization was $719, 197 and $984,523 for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively, and 
is recorded as campus program revenue. Amounts due from the University at June 30, 2013 and 2012 
were $87,216 and $4,049, respectively, and are included in due from afflHates. 

From time to time, the Organization receives funds for University-related programs, which are 
subsequently transferred to the University. Amounts held for this purpose as of June 30, 2013 were 
$262,267 and are included In amounts due to affiliates. There was no balance for this purpose as of June 
30, 2012. 

On July 1, 2012, the Organization transferred the activities of the ALCI program to the University. 
Associated with this transfer, the Organization paid expenses in the amount of $859,979 on the 
University's behalf and is recorded as a transfer of net assets. The ALCI activities continue to operate as 
a component of the extended learning program at the University. 

On June 28, 2013, the Organization loaned the University $250,000 at 3 percent Interest payable over 
seven years through June 30, 2020, in order to help with the budget reductions faced by the University. 
Interest-only payments of $7,500 are due the first two years, and then principal and interest payments of 
$54,589 per year are due over the remaining five years. 

The Organization, as a lessor, has entered Into an operating lease agreement to rent storage space to 
the University at 435 E. Carmel Street. The monthly rental income Is $12, 140 ttvough December 31, 2012 
and $11,591 from January 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014. Total rental income was $145,680 for each of 
the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012. The Mure minimum rental receipts for the year ending 
June 30, 2014 are $139,092. 

In July 2004, the Organization entered Into an agreement with UCorp to provide certain personnel and 
other operating services. The total amount incurred for these services and costs was $309,645 and 
$273,960 for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. As of June 30, 2013 and 2012, there 
was an amount due from UCorp for these services In the amount of $132,518 and $273,960, respectively. 

14 




University Auxlllary and Research Services Corporation 

Notes to Financlal Statements 

Note 6. Transactions With Affiliates (Continued) 

On July 1, 2010, the Organization entered Into a payroll processing agreement with ASI. Under this 
agreement, all ASI employees became employees of the Organization. During the years ended June 30, 
2013 and 2012, the Organization invoiced ASI for $738,627 and $816,268, respectively, for payroll and 
benefits, administration fees and supplies. As of June 30, 2013 and 2012. the Organization had 
receivables due from ASI in the amounts of $31,239 and $43,112, respectively, which are included in due 
from affiliates. 

The Organization has an operating agreement with CSUSMF to provide certain administrative services, 
including cash management processes, gift account administration, and accounting and financial 
reporting assistance. The Organization receives an administrative fee when CSUSMF funds are 
expended. The due to affiliate liability represents the status of that relationship as of June 30, 2013 and 
2012 in terms of balances held by the Organization that are being managed on behalf of CSUSMF. The 
balances due to CSUSMF as of June 30, 2013 and 2012 were $7,527,922 and $8,373,994, respectively, 
which are included in due to affiliates. 
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University Auxiliary and Research Services Corporation 

Schedule of Net Position 


June 30, 2013 

(for Inclusion In The Csllfomia State University) 


Assets: 
Current assets: 


Cash and cash equivalents 

Short-tenn investments 

Accounts receivable, net 

Leaaea receivable, cunant portion 

Notes receivable, current portion 

Pledges receivable, net 

Prepaid expenses and other aasats 


Total current assets 
Noncurrent assets: 


Restricted cash and cash equivalents 

Accounts receivable, net 

Leases receivable, net of current portion 

Notes receivable, net of current portion 

Student loans receivable, net 

Pledges receivable, net 

Endowment investments 

Other long-tenn investments 

Capital assets, net 

Other assets 


Total noncurrent asaets 
Total assets 

Deferred outflows of resources: 
Unamortized loB& on refUndlng(s) 

Total deferred outflows of resources 
Uabilltles: 

Current liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Accrued salaries and benefits payable 
Accrued compensated absences, current portion 
Unearned revenue 
Capitalized lease obligations, current portion 
Long-tenn debt obligetions, current portion 
Self-insurance claims liabHity, current portion 
Depository accounts 
Other UabHities 

Total ainant liabilities 
Noncunant liabilities: 

Accrued compensated absences, net of current portion 
Unearned revenue 
Grants refUndable 
Capitalized lease obligations, net of current portion 
Long-term debt obligations, net of current portion 
Self-insurance cleims Habilitiea, net of current portion 
Depository accounts 
Other postemployment benefits obligation 
Other liabiHties 

Total noncurrent liabiUties 
Total 6abUlties 

Deferred innows of resources· 
Deferred Inflows from SCAs, grants and others 

Total deferred inflows of resources 

s 450,438 
11,488,444 

1,299,673 

44658 
13,283,213 

250,000 

5,780,559 
61,081 

6,091,640 
19,374,853 

8,403,125 
388,640 
293,372 
418,104 

17456 
9,520,697 

1,483,436 

1,483,436 
11,004,133 
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Net Position: 
Net investment in capital assets 
Restrieled for: 

Nonexpendable, endowments 
Expendable. 

Scholarshlp1 end feUowahip1 
Research 
Loans 
Capital projects 
Debt service 
Other 

Unrestricted 
Total net position 

University Auxiliary and Reaearoh Servloes Corporation 

Schedule of Net Position (Continued) 


June 30, 2013 

(for inclusion in The California State University) 
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s 5,780,559 

2,590,161 
$ 8.370.720 



University Auxiliary and Research Servlves Corporation 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 


Year Ended June 30, 2013 

(for indualon In The California State University) 


Revenues: 
Operating revenues: 

Student tuition and fees (net of scholarship allowances of $0) 
Grants and contracts, noncapital: 

Federal 
State 

Local 

Nongovernmental 


Sales and services of educational activities 
Sales and seNlces of auxiliary enterprises (net of scholarship 

allowances of $0) 
Other operating revenues 

Total operating revenues 
Expenses: 

Operating expenses: 

Instruction 

Research 

Public seNice 

Academic support 

Student services 

Institutional support 

Operation and maintenance of plant 

Student granta and scholarships 

Auxiliary enterprise expenses 

Depreciation and amortization 


Total operating expenses 
Operating loss 

Nonoperatlng revenues (expenses): 
State appropriations, noncepltal 
Federal financial aid granta, noncapital 
State financial aid granta, noncapltal 
Local financial aid grants, noncapltal 
Nongovernmental and other financial aid grants, noncapital 
Other federal nonoperating grant&, noncapital 
Gifts, noncepital 
Investment Income, net 
Endowment income 
Interest expense 
Other nonoperatlng expenses 

Net nonoperatlng expenses 
Loss before other additions 

State appropriations, capital 
Grants and gifts, capital 
Additions (reductions) to pennanent endowments 

Decrease in net position 
Net position: 

Net position at beginning of year, as previously reported 
Restatements 
Net position at beginning of year. as restated 
Net position at end of year 

s 6,273,797 
662,181 
116,638 
474,444 

1,597,640 

1,329,665 

10,454,365 

1,905,662 
3,525,674 

182,502 
404,410 

1,612,509 
2,921,135 

94,662 
211,089 
494,149 

11 351 11921
l897.427~ 

6,151 

(859,979) 
(853,828) 

(1,751,255) 

(1,751,255) 

10,121,975 

10.121.975 

$ ==-8=·=37'=0=,7=20== 
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University Auxlllary and Research Services Corporation 

Other Information 


June 30, 2013 

(for inclusion in The California State University) 


1 	 Restrlcl9d t:alll 811d -" equlvlllents .. June ao, zo1a: 
Portion of res1rlcted c:un and cash equivalents related to endoWmenlS s 
AD Diiier rastnded cash and cash equlvelenls 

Total reslrlded CllSll and C8lll equlnllnll ·--=-==-===_,_ 	 ___,_1.1 C--.,rlf-•-·:io.21113: 

-f6ClllDINl8'aplulMonorl_F_(8MIF) 	 --•·--ClllDINI..--.,.,,--,_(UIF) 
--T-Fund 

--T-Fuod
_l!qully,_
CIU ___i-llWFT--BMF) 

C:-.00.Fund-8-T-Fund 

C-...'und·Ol*I
...,_°""'---(T--.~>!AIOI---~-...... 
_,__ 1.IMD.8J1 1,940.131 	 U«>.BJt 

~--........-

_..,_ 
~_......., 


~-.....-...-~. 

Hldgo
OIWlllljor-1111--.....---... 
-~--......,,,,,,........,
----Tlllol  n.•. 
~---c-.........-	 "-··-


Tlllol 

u - .. -..,...11111-.11r----··-•21111: 
_.,,_,... - 2 .• -.., ... ~--

...-a1.iuno».ao1:1 	 a 
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University Auxlllary and Research Services Corporation 

Other Information 


June 30, 2013 

(for inclusion in The California State University) 


2.3 Restricted cumnt Investments at June 30, 2013 related to: Amount 

Add description $ 


Add description 

Add description 

Add description 

Add description 

Add description 

Add description 


Total restrided current Investments at June 30, 2013 $========= 
2.4 Restricted noncurrent Investments at June 30, 2013 related to: Amount 

Endowment investment $ 

Add description 

Add description 

Add description 

Add description 

Add description 

Add deSCtipt1on 

Add description 


Total restricted noncurrent Investments at June 30, 2013 $================ 
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University Auxlllary and Research Services Corporation 

Other Information 


Year Ended June 30, 2013 

(for inclusion in The California State University) 


..................................... 
......---W--•-----..-·(CWIP)............-...._.. ___----._...,_......... _.. _"--°""'-....-TOlll_.,.,.._T.....,....______ 

--- ---. - - _..,-CWIP 

°"41"~~
...........lu""V_- .--.......-~--~--_,,...____ 

..,... __-

1,1U!.%111 
1.11ur.z 

1.m.., 1.m ."1 

1,1c::!2D 
1,116112 

.... ~-
~-°""'....,._T_,..,...__ 

~-TT........__ 

...... ~~·-=a••................._-.--......... -~-._i.--,_.,,,_ 
..........................___--...--... 
~-°""'.......,._T...,...,..._T--T---·-

!.'Fi!!? 
Ul!!.19' 

(117,11111 
(1:17411) 

11.•u.100> 

(1.211.1131 

PmtBll 

!.11UZ7 ··
(117,11111 
(117,45) 

(1•.,..711111 

11.211.1131 

30.3U 

30.Jll 

(117,IDI) 
(117..... 

(121.917) 

t51.100I 

....,., 

11.213?!! 

1.213lM 

(3352111 
(2!£llt!ll 

l•.6Ul77l 

(1.r.T91SJ 

P.G:mJ 

1.710llll 
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University Auxlllary and Research Services Corporation 

Other Information 


June 30, 2013 

(for indusion in The California State University) 


:u DMal1ofdepreolalfon111111 amonlatlon ..,.... fOrlhe 1198' ended June 30, 2013: 

Depredation and amlll1izalion expanse relatlld to capital aaeta s 494,149 

AmOltization expense related ID other aseets 


Total daplec:i8tion and amortizllllon 	 s 49',149 

~--...
c.m...,......, __... _ 	 - .......... --.---.-

:!11.GllO 
-- ·--· 211.080 -:za.m -12>1.0llO) -·-· -

:itun -m.m __,.._...,...__......,.. ---· 
T--lo-*""""' 

~-olilglllool·°"'"'_,___,c-t-Por.--..... 
°'*	--_,...._ 


T___..._ --"'
---•c-.i 
~ ............. 


Taa1..,.....e11111~ .. 
Taat ........ _ 
 s ii;11.lllO 	 2'1.lllO mm ~,..,t a!!im 3l13T.! 
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University Auxlllary and Research Services Corporation 

Other Information 


June 30, 2013 

(for indusion in The California State University) 


Future minimum lease payments • capital lease obligations: 

Principal and 
Principal Interest Interest 

Year ending June 30: 
2014 $ 

2015 

2016 

2017 

2018 

2019 -2023 

2024-2028 

2029-2033 

2034-2038 

2039-2043 

2044-2048 

2049.2053 

2054-2058 

2059-2063 


Tolal minimum lease payments 

Less amCM'lts representing interest 

Present value of future mlnmum lease payments 

Less. current portion 

Capitalized lease obligation, net of current portion $-==--=====
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University Auxlllary and Research Services Corporation 

Other Information 


June 30, 2013 

(for indusion in The California State University) 
. .__....,.__ - ...... ..........-- PiiiilW
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University Auxlllary and Research Services Corporation 

Other Information 


June 30, 2013 

(for Inclusion in The California State University) 


Calculatlon of net position 

7.1 Calculatlon of net position - Net lnvntment In capltal auets 

capital assets, net of accumulated depnlClatJon 

Cepitalized tease obligations, current portion 
Capilallzecl lease obllgallons, net of current partlon 
Long-term debt obllgalions, current par11on 
Long-term debt obllgalions, net of current portion 
Por11on of outstanding debt that 18 unspent It year-end 
Other acljustmenls• (please list) 

Add description 


Add description 

Add descnption 

Add description 

Add descriplion 


Net position • net invettmenl In capital UHl 

7.2 Calculation of net position - Restrtctlld for nonexpendable -endowments 
Portion of restricted cash and cash equlvalants related to endowments 
Endowment investments 
Other adjustments· (pleaSe lilt) 

Add description 

Add descripllOn 

Add descnplion 

Add description 

Add descnption 

Add deScnption 

Add descnption 

Add description 

Add c1escnp11on 

Add description 


Net poSlllon • Restncted for nonexpendable • endoWmenll par SNP 

Total 

GASB FASB Auxlllartes 

s 5,780,559 5,780,559 

5,780,559 5,780,559'=============---

s 

$=======--=
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University Auxiliary and Research Services Corporation 

Other Information 


Year Ended June 30, 2013 

(for inclusion in The California State University) 


T1'811111lctions with '91ated entitles 

Amount 

Payments to University for salarfea ofUnlvetalty personnel wollclng on c:ontrads, granla and other piograms 
Payments to Unnierelly for other than salaries of University personnel 
Payments received from Unillerelly for aervlcal, space and programs 
Gifts-in-kind to Ille Unhlerelly from Allldllaly Organizations 
Gifts (cash or assets) to the University from recogntzacl Allldlary Organizations 
Accounts (payable to) Univerelly (enter aa negaUve number) 
Other amounts (payable to) University (enter aa negallve number) 
Accounts receivable from Uniwrelly 
Other amounts receivable from University 

s 824,529 

6,210,871 

719,197 

(290.212) 

87.218 

250.000 

9 Other Postemployment Benefits Obligation (OPEB) 

Annual requinld conlnbution (ARC) 
Contributions dunng the year 

s 278,188 

lnaease In net OPES obligation (NOC) 278,168 

NOO • beginning or year 

NOC • end of year 

1.205.268 

$=========1••483.....,,4_38== 
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University Auxiliary and Research Services Corporation 

Other Information 


June 30, 2013 

{for inclusion in The California State University) 


to Pollution remedlallon UllbUJlles under GASB Slnlmant No. 48: 

DllSCl'tpllon Amount 

Add description s 

Add clescnption 

Add d8scripllon 


Add clescnption 

Add description 

Add descriplion 

Add desc:ripllon 

Add description 

Add description 

Add descripllon 


T0'81 pollution remactlallon llablDtlu 

Leas: current portion 

POUUlion remeditlon DeblDlln, net of cwrent portion $============ 

t 1 Tbe netunt and amount Of the prior period adjultmeftt(e) 1'9Coftled to beginning net poelllon 

NII Poelllon 
Clasa Amount 

Dr. (Cr.) 

Net posttlon as ofJune 30. 2012, as pnivtously reported s 10,121,975 
Prior period adjustments: 


1 (list deacripllon of each adjustment) 

2 (list description of each adjustment) 

3 (list description ofeach adjustment) 

4 (list delcllptlon of each adjustment) 

5 (list delcrlpllon of each adjustment) 

8 (list descripllon ofeach adjustment) 

7 (list delCllption Of each adjustment) 

8 (list delc:rlptlon of each adjustment) 

9 (Ost delcnptlon ofeach adjustment) 


10 (list description ofeach adjullment) 

Net poslllon as of June 30, 2012, as restated s-==-=-=10....1...21=,9=7=5= 
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University Auxlllary and Research Services Corporation 

Other Information 


June 30, 2013 

(for induslon in The California state University) 


Prvvlde • det811ed b ...kdown ofthe journal entrln lft 11!1 ftnanplal ....,,,nt !Im ll•m ltnl> booad ID record •ch prior ptriod acljustmtnt: 

Nil position ctass:.._______ 

1 (tll8alUlown of adju&llng journal ently)

• 
Net position clua:_______ 

2 (breakdown of adjusting joumal entry)

• 
Net positlon clall:._______ 

3 (breakdown of adjusting jOumal entry) 

Nel position ClaSS:._______ 

4 (btealcdoMI of adjusting joumal ently) 

Net position ctass:._______ 

5 (bnlakdown of adjusting JOUm&I 8nlly) 

Net position class.._______ 

8 (breHOown Of adJusling JOUmal enlly) 

Nel position clUs._______ 

7 (brealrdown of adjusting JOUm&I entry) 

Net pOStllon class: _______ 

8 (bleakdown of adjusting joumal enllY) 

Nat position class • ._____ _ _ 

9 (b!Uledown of ldjustlllg JOUm&I entry) 

Debit Cl'ldlt 

s 
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University Auxiliary and Research Services Corporation 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Federal Grantor/Pass-Throuph Grantor/Program or Cluster Title 
Reaearch and OtvelOpment Cluster: 

National Institutes of Health 
Direct Programs: 

Allergy, Immunology and Transplantation Research 
Biomedical Research and Research Training 
Mental Heahh Research Career1Scient!st Development 
Diabetes, Digestive and Kidney Diseases Extramural Research 

Passed through Endocrine Society: 

Biomedical Research and Research Training 


Passed through from La Jolla Institute for AHergy and Immunology: 
Allergy, Immunology and Transplantation Research 

Total National Institutes of Health 

U.S. Department of Energy 
Direct Program: 


Office of Science Financial Assistance Program 


National Archives and Records Administration 

Direct Program: 


National Historical Publications and Records Grants 


U.S. DepadnJent of Healtb and Human SeN!ces 
Diract Program: 


Family and Community Violence PntWntion Program 


National Science Found!tion 
Olract Programs: 


Computer and Information Science and Engineering 

Social, Behavioral and Economic Sciences 

Education and Human Resources 

International Science and Engineering 

Cyberinfrastructure 


Passed through from Univafsity of San Diego: 

Education and Human Resources 

Polar Programs 


Passed through from San Diego State University 

Education Human Resources 


Total National Science Foundation 


Catalog of 

Federal 


Domestic 

Assistance 


Number 


93.855 
93.859 
93.281 
93.847 

93.859 

93.855 

81.049 

89.003 

93.910 

47.070 
47.075 
47.076 
47.079 
47.080 

47.076 
47.078 

47.076 

Pass-Through Entity Federal 
Identifying Number Expenditures 

NIA 
NIA 
NIA 
NIA 

IT36GM095349, IT36GM095349·01 

5R01A1070902-04 

NIA 

NIA 

NIA 

NIA 
NIA 
NIA 
NIA 
NIA 

DUE 1239797 
ANT-1043435 

DUE 1044172 

$ 85,854 
971,535 
16,010 

170.583 
1,243,982 

29,064 

28,070 
1.301.116 

79,336 
79,336 

61,902 
61,902 

42,740 
42.740 

157,322 
19,774 

627,085 
47,753 

155,191 
1,007,125 

180,474 
57,085 

237,559 

10,350 
1.255.034 

(Continued) 

1 




University Auxiliary and Research Services Corporation 


Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (Continued) 

Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Catalog of 
Federal 

Domestic 
Assistance 

Federal Grantor/Pass-Throueh Grantor/Propram or Cluster Title Number 
U.S. PtPartmtnt pf Agrlcu!ture Fores! Sgodct 

Direct Program: 
Hispanic Serving Institutions Education Grants 10.223 

Environmental Protection Aaeocy Office of Water 
Passed through from San Jos6 State University: 

Water Pollution Control State, Interstate and Tribal Program 
Support 66.419 

National Aeronautics and Space Admjnistratjon 
Passed through from University of Califomia, San Diego: 

Science Program 43.001 

Department of Housjng and Urban Develo0ment 
Passed through from the City of San Diego: 

Healthy Homes and Lead Hazard Control Programs 14.901 
Total Research and Development Cluster 

TRIO Cluster: 
U.S. Department of Education 

Direct Programs: 
TRIO Cluster: 

TRIO - Student Support Services 84.042 
TRIO - Talent Search 84.044 
TRIO - Upward Bound 84.047 

Total TRJO Cluster 

Natjonal Institutes of Health 
Direct Programs: 

Allergy, Immunology and Transplantation Research 	 93.855 
BiOmedlcal Research and Research Training 	 93.859 

(Continued) 

Pass-Through Entity 
ldentiMnp Number 

NIA 

198910092, SWRCB 11-074-270 

NNX11AF24G 

FR5300N17 

NIA 
NIA 
NIA 

NIA 
N/A 

Federal 
Expenditures 

$ 	 97,260 
97,260 

106,695 
106,695 

51,878 
51,878 

10,000 
* 3,005,961 

292,680 
234,095 
266,647 
793,422 

32,182 
1.332,418 
1,364,600 
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University Auxiliary and Research Services Corporation 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (Continued) 
Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Catalog of 
Federal 

Domestic 
Assistance 

Federal Grantor/Pass-Throuph Grantor/Proeram or Cluster Title Number 
U,S. Ptp•nm!UJt Of EdUClllQO 

Direct Programs: 
Child Care Access Means Parents In School 
English Language Acquisition State Grants 
Migrant Education - CoHega Assistance Migrant Program 

84.335 
84.365 
84.149 

Passed through from Catifomia Department of Education: 
Improving Teacher Quality State Grant 84.367 

Passed through from National Writing Project: 
Improving Teacher Quality State Grant 84.367 

Passed through from Palomar Collage: 
Higher Education lnslituUonal Aid 
Gaining Early Awareness and Readiness for Undergraduate 

Programs 

84.031 

84.334 

Passed through from San Diego County Office of Education: 
Fund for the Improvement of Education 

Total U.S. Department of Education 
84.215 

National Science Fouodaljon 
Direct Programs: 

EducaUon Human Resources 47.076 

Passed through University Enterprises: 
Education Human Resources 47.076 

Passed through Physics Teacher Education: 
Mathematical and Physical Sciences 47.049 

Passed through from Miami Dade College: 
Computer and lnfonnation Science and Engineering 

Total National Science Foundation 
47.070 

Learn and S@JV! America Higher Education 
Passed through from California State University Office of the 

Chancellor: 
Service Leaming Program 

Total Leam and Serve America Higher Education 
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards 

94.005 

* Denotes Major Program 
NIA - Not Applicable 

See Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 

Pass-Through Entity Federal 
ldantifxinp Number Expenditures 

NIA 
N/A 
NIA 

CN110113, CN120273 


S367D120015 


P031S100109 


P334A110234 


U215X090454 


NIA 

HRD-0802628 

PHY-0808790 

CNS-0940575 

10LHPCA001 

$ 57,135 
313,229 
388,232 
758,596 

14,462 

171,520 

4,105 
175,625 

7944 
988,420 

36,067 

23,149 

21,947 

361242 
117.405 

3,989 
3,989 

$6273 797 
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University Auxiliary and Research Services Corporation 

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Note 1. Basis of Presentation 

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule) includes the federal 
grant adlvity of University Auxlllary and Research Services Corporation (the Organization) under 
programs of the federal government for the year ended June 30, 2013. The information in the Schedule Is 
presented in accordance with the requirements of Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular 
A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Because the Schedule 
presents only a seleded portion of the operations of the Organization, it is not intended to, and does not, 
present the financial position, changes in net assets or cash flows of the Organization. 

Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such 
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained In OMB Circular A-122, Cost 
Principles for Non-Profit Organizations, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are 
limited as to reimbursement. Pass-through entity identifying numbers are presented where available. 
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McGladrey LLP 

I McGladrey 


Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and 
on Compllance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements 

Performed In Accordance With Government Auditing Standards 

Board of Directors 
University Auxiliary and Research 

Services Corporation 
San Marcos, CA 

We have audited, In accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
Issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of University Auxlllary 
and Research Services Corporation (the Organization) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, and 
the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated September 24, 
2013. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Organization's 
Internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are 
appropriate In the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the flnanciaJ statements, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal 
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's Internal 
control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, In the normaJ course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent. or 
dated and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness Is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in Internal controt, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected. on a 
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, In Internal controt 
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet Important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to Identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit, we did not identify any 
deficiencies in Internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been Identified. 

Compliance and Other Mattera 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Organization's financial statements are free 
from material misstatement. we performed tests of its compliance With certain provisions of laws. 
regulations. contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance With which could have a direct and material 
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance 
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit. and accordingly. we do not express such an 
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are 
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards 
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Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

&~L~,,P 
San Diego, CA 
September 24, 2013 
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McGlndrey LLP 

I McGladrey 


Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program; 
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance; and Report on Schedule of Expenditures 

of Federal Awards Required by OMB Circular A-133 

Board of Directors 
University Auxiliary and Research 

Services Corporation 
San Marcos, CA 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited University Auxiliary and Research Services Corporation's (the Organization) compliance 
with the types of compliance requirements described In the U.S. Office of Management and Budget 
(OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the 
Organization's major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2013. The Organization's major 
federal programs are Identified in the Summary of Auditor's Results section of the accompanying 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. 

Management's Responsibility 

Management Is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and 
grants applicable to Its federal programs. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility Is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Organization's major federal 
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted 
our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits ofStates, Local 
Governments, and Non-Profit Otganizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types 
of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major 
federal program occurred. An audit lndudes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the 
Organization's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessary In the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major 
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Organization's 
compliance. 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, the Organization complied, In all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal 
programs for the year ended June 30, 2013. 
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of the Organization Is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective Internal control 
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing 
our audit of compliance, we considered the Organization's internal control over compliance with the 
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine our 
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on Internal control over compliance In 
accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of Internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Organization's lntemal control over compllance. 

A deficiency in internal control overcompliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance Is a 
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, In Internal control over compliance, such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in 
internal control over compliance Is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, In Internal control over 
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that Is less severe than a material 
weakness in Internal control over compliance, yet Important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 

Our consideration of Internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described In the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies In Internal control over 
compliance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not Identify 
any deficiencies In internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as 
defined above. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on Internal control over compliance Is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of Internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of 
OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report Is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by OMB Circular A-133 

We have audited the financial statements of the Organization as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, 
and have issued our report thereon dated September 24, 2013, which contained an unmodified opinion 
on those financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the 
financial statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is 
presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by OMB Circular A-133 and is not a required 
part of the financial statements. Such information Is the responsibility of management and was derived 
from, and relates directly to, the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
financial statements and certain additional procedures, Including comparing and reconciling such 
Information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures In accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted In the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of 
expenditure of federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements 
as a whole. 

/I(~ ~et-r:" 

San Diego, CA 
September 24, 2013 
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University Auxlllary and Research Services Corporation 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
Year Ended June 30, 2013 

I. 	 Summary of Independent Auditor's Results 

Flnanclal Statements 

Type of auditor's report issued: Unmodified 

Internal control over financial reporting: 

• 	 Material weakness(es) Identified? 
• 	 Significant deflciency(ies) Identified that are not 

considered to be material weaknesses? 

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? 

Federal Awards 


Internal control over major programs: 


• 	 Material weakness(es) identified? 
• 	 Significant deficlency(ies) identified that are not 

considered to be material weaknesses? 

Type of auditor's report Issued on compliance for major 
programs: Unmodified 

• 	 Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be 
reported in accordance with Section 51 O(a) of OMB 
Circular A-133? 

Identification of major programs: 

-- Yes 

-- Yes 

--- Yes 

Yes 

--- Yes 

--- Yes 

X No 

X None Reported 

X No 

X No 

X No 

X No 

CFDANumber Name of Federal Program or Cluster 

Various 	 Research and Development Cluster 
93.859 Biomedical Research and Research Training 
Various TRIO Cluster 
84.149 	 Migrant Education - College Assistance Migrant Program 
84.365 	 English Language Acquisition State Grants 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and 
Type B programs: 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? 

$ 300,000 

Yes X No 
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University Auxlllary and Research Services Corporation 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Coats (Continued) 
Year Ended June 30, 2013 

II. Financial Statement Findings 

A. 	 Significant Deficiencies 


No matters were reported. 


B. 	 Compliance Findings 


No matters were reported. 


Ill. Findings and Questioned Costs for Federal Awards 

A. 	 Significant Deficiencies 


No matters were reported. 


B. 	 Compliance Findings 


No matters were reported. 
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University Auxiliary and Research Services Corporation 

Summary Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings 
Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Findings and Questioned Costs reported during the year ended June 30, 2012 were as follows: 

For Flnanclal Statements-Significant Deficiencies: 

2012-01: Revenue Recognition 

Criteria: According to the Revenue Recognition Topic of the FASB ASC, revenues of an entity during 
a period are generally measured by the exchange values of the assets (goods or services) or liabilities 
Involved, and recognition Involves consideration of two factors: (1) being realized or realizable; and (2) 
being earned. 

Condition: The Organization does not have proper controls in place to Identify revenue recognition 
criteria for Its diverse revenue streams. As a result, we noted the following during our audit: 

Context: 

a. 	 The Organization recorded certain transactions that grossed-up revenue and expense, which 
should have been recorded as •ner transactions. The Organization recorded certain 
transactions that netted revenue and expense, which should have been recorded as "gross" 
revenue or expense. 

b. 	 The Organization did not properly defer revenues at the end of the fiscal year for two programs 
that collect registration fees for various nonaedit courses offered during the following fiscal 
year. 

c. 	 The Organization recorded a duplicate transaction related to fees from an affiliated organization, 
which resulted in excess revenue and receivable amounts. 

Effect: The Instances of errors noted above resulted in the following: 

a. 	The net adjustment of these classification errors was an adjustment to Increase revenue and 
inaease expense by approximately $446,000. 

b. 	An adjustment was recorded to decrease revenue and increase deferred revenue liability by 
approximately $112,000. 

c. 	 An adjustment was recorded to decrease revenue and decrease receivables by approximately 
$197,000. 

We consider the above errors related to revenue recognition to be significant deficiencies in internal 
control over financial reporting. 

Cause: Lack of proper controls, supervision and review over revenue recognition. 

Recommendation: We recommend the Organization design and establish Internal controls to identify 
the appropriate revenue recognition criteria for each revenue stream. 
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University Auxlllary and Research Services Corporation 

Summary Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings 
Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Management's response: The Organization provides payroll services to another campus auxiliary 
organization In which total payroll costs are reimbursed to the Organization by the campus auxiliary. 
Since all auxiliary reporting Is consolidated at the campus level, management believed It was best to 
net the total payroll cost reimbursement as an offset to the total payroll expense on the Organization's 
books since the revenues and costs associated with the payroll transactions also appear on the other 
campus auxlllary's statement of activities. After discussion with the auditors, management agreed the 
amounts should have been recorded as gross amounts on the Organization's statements and that the 
consolidation would take place at the campus level. Management will develop a process to confer with 
Its auditors during the year In regard to proper recordng of such transactions. 

Management needs to Improve Its processes to review all revenue transactions near the end of the 
fiscal year to ensure an deferred revenue Items are property Identified and recorded as liabilities 
Instead of revenues. 

Status: Corrective action was taken. 

2012-02: Allocation of Internal Project Expenses 

Criteria: According to the Accounts Receivable Topic of the FASB ASC, accounts receivable are 
defined as claims against customers and others that arise from selling goods, providing services or 
advancing funds. 

Condition: The Organization does not have proper controls In place to review receivables and to 
facilitate the recording of expense allocations among projects. 

Context: The Organization reduced Its expenses and recorded a receivable for Internal project 
expenses when It should have just allocated and recorded those expenses directly to the projects. 

Effect: The error resulted In a recorded current year adjustment to decrease receivables and Increase 
expense approximately $127,000. We consider the error to be a significant deficiency in internal 
control over financial reporting. 

Cause: Lack of proper controls over expense allocation. 

Recommendation: we recommend the Organization design and establish Internal controls to 
facilitate the allocation of expenses to Internal projects. 

Management's response: Management will establish Internal controls to facilitate the proper 
recording of cost reimbursements and charges to/from other campus auxiliaries related to accounting 
and other administrative services that are provided by the Organization. 

Status: Corrective action was taken. 

For Federal Awards-Compliance Finding: 

2012-03: Timely Submission of Data Collection Fonn 

Criteria: According to OMB Circular A-133 Section 320 (Report Submission), the data collection form 
should be submitted on the earlier of 30 days following the receipt of the auditor's report or nine 
months after the end of the audit period. 
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University Auxlllary and Research Services Corporation 

Summary Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings 
Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Condition: The Organization does not have proper controls In place to identify and comply with 
reporting criteria of the OMB. 

Context: The Organization flied the data colledlon form on June 28, 2012, while the audit report was 
issued on September 21, 2011. 

Effect: Unknown. 


Cause: Lack of proper controls over reporting criteria. 


Recommendation: We recommend the Organization design and establish lntemal controls to Identify 

and comply with reporting deadlines. 


Management's response: Management will develop internal controls, which Include receipt of proper 

confirmation from its audit services provider that compliance reporting, such as the Data Collection 

Form, has been submitted on a timely basis. 


Status: Corredlve adlon was taken. 
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